UNIVERSITY OF EDUCATION, WINNEBA

FACTORS CONTRIBUTING TO EFFECTIVE TEACHING AND LEARNING IN THE PUBLIC SENIOR HIGH SCHOOLS IN BANTAMA SUB METRO IN KUMASI METROPOLIS



A Project Report in the Department of Educational Leadership, Faculty of
Education and Communication Sciences submitted to the School of Graduate
Studies, University of Education, Winneba, in partial fulfilment of the requirements
for award of the Master of Arts (Educational Leadership) degree

DECLARATION

STUDENT'S DECLARATION

I, DINA DONKYE ARTHUR, declare that this project report, with the exception of quotations and references contained in published works which have all been identified and duly acknowledged, is entirely my own original work, and it has not been submitted, either in part or whole, for another degree elsewhere.

			100
SIGNATURE:		 	T.
DATE:		 	
	主作		

SUPERVISOR'S DECLARATION

I hereby declare that the preparation and presentation of this work was supervised in accordance with the guidelines for supervision of project report as laid down by the University of Education, Winneba.

NAME OF SUPERVISOR: REV. DR. ALEXANDER K. EDWARDS
SIGNATURE
DATE:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The successful completion of this project work has been made possible through the help of many people who assisted me in its preparation and presentation. My first thanks go to the Almighty God for His love, care and protection. Special thanks also go Rev. Dr. Alexander K. Edwards my supervisor for his academic criticism which gave high quality to this work.

I am also grateful to Mr. Sadick Mohammed Ridwan for his dedicated time and assistance towards the completion of this work not forgetting Mr. Stephen Boateng for his financial support. Finally I thank all my friends and relatives who helped me in diverse ways towards this great academic achievement.

DEDICATION

To my loving husband Mr. Isaac Arthur, my sweet daughters' Juliana Kyerema and Isabella T. Arthur and to my entire family.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

CONTENT	PAGE
TITLE PAGE	
DECLARATION	i
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	ii
DEDICATION	iv
TABLE OF CONTENTS	V
LIST OF TABLES	vii
ABSTRACT	ix
CHAPTER ONE: INTROD <mark>UCTIO</mark> N	10
1.1. Background of the Study	10
1.2 Statement of the Problem	12
1.3. Purpose of the Study	12
1.4. Objectives of the Study	12
1.5. Research Questions	13
1.6. Significance of the Study	13
1.7. Delimitation of the Study	14
1.8. Limitation of the Study	14
1.9. Organization of the Study	14
CHAPTER TWO: REVIEW OF RELATED LITERATURE	16
2.1. Introduction	16
2.2. Concept of Learning	16
2.3. The Element of the Human Learning Event	19

2.4. Factors Contributing to Effective Teaching and Learning	20
2.4.1. Concepts of Decision-Making	20
2.4.2. Rationale for Teachers' Participation in School Decision Making	22
2.5. Personality	25
2.5.1. Dimensions of Personality	25
2.5.1.1. Extroversion	26
2.5.1.2. Agreeableness	26
2.5.1.3. Conscientiousness	28
2.5.1.4. Neuroticism	28
2.5.1.5. Openness	29
2.6. Teachers Personality and Effective Teaching and Learning	30
2.7. Heads Leadership Sty <mark>les and Teachers Effective Te</mark> aching and Learning	31
2.7.1. Leadership and Quality Learning	34
2.7.2. Heads Leadership Style and School Improvement	36
2.8. Relationship between Instructional Supervision and Effective Teaching and	
Learning	37
2.8.1. Relationship between Instructional Supervision and Teachers' Performance	38
2.9. Summary of Literature Review	38
CHAPTER THREE: METHODOLOGY	41
3.1. Introduction	41
3.2. Research Design	41
3.3. Population of the Study	42
3.4. Sample and Sampling Technique	43

3.5. Research Instrument	43
3.6. Testing Validity and Reliability of the Instrument	44
3.8. Data Collection Procedure	44
3.9. Data Analysis Procedure	45
3.10. Ethical Considerations	45
CHAPTER FOUR: DATA PRESENTATION, ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION OF	7
FINDINGS	46
4.1 Introduction	46
4.2. Response Rate	46
4.3. SECTION A – Demographic Characteristics of Teachers	46
4.4. SECTION B – ANALY <mark>SIS AND DISCUSSIONS</mark> OF RESEARCH QUESTION	NS 49
CHAPTER FIVE: SUMMARY OF FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS AND	
RECOMMENDATIONS	65
5.1. Introduction	65
5.2. Summary of Findings	65
5.3. Conclusion	67
5.4. Recommendations	67
5.5. Recommendations for Future Research	68
REFERENCES	69
APPENDIX A	80

LIST OF TABLES

TABL	ABLE	
3.1	Distribution of the Study Population and Sample Selected	40
4.1	Age Distribution of Teachers	47
4.2	Sex Distribution of Teachers	47
4.3	Educational Status Distribution of Teachers	48
4.4	Teachers Work Experience	49
4.5	Teachers Involvement in Decision Making Influence Effective Teaching	
	and Learning in Senior High School in Bantama Sub Metro in Kumasi	
	Metropolis	50
4.6	Extend Teachers Personality Influence Effective Teaching and Learning	
	in Senior High School in Bantama Sub Metro in Kumasi Metropolis	53
4.7	Heads Leadership Style Influence Effective Teaching and Learning in	
	Senior High School in Bantama Sub Metro in Kumasi Metropolis	57
4.8	Heads Instructional Supervision Influencing Effective Teaching and	
	Learning in Senior High School in Bantama Sub Metro in Kumasi	
	Metropolis	61
4.9	Summary of Factors Influencing Effective Teaching and Learning in	
	Senior High School in Bantama Sub Metro in Kumasi Metropolis	63

ABSTRACT

This research sought to investigate the factors that contribute to effective teaching and learning in the public senior high schools in Bantama Sub-Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis. The target population for this study comprised of all senior high school teachers in the study area. Out of 342 teachers, 118 of them were randomly selected to participate in the study. Out of this sample selected, 105 representing 89% participated in the study. The study was conducted with quantitative research approach executed through questionnaires. The study employed descriptive cross-sectional design. The reliability of the instruments was above 0.88 Cronbach alpha. The data collected were subjected to statistical analyses using frequency, percentages and mean. Findings indicated that head masters' instructional supervision breeds good school environment that is conducive and therefore influence effective teaching and learning. Based on these findings, it was recommended that head masters should set time for instructional supervision in schools because it is one of the roles that positively influence effective teaching and learning.

CHAPTER ONE

INTRODUCTION

1.1. Background to the Study

Effective teaching in our schools is a major concern in countries of the world. For effective teaching to take place, teachers should closely monitor each student's achievements. This enables them to provide every one of their students with regular feedback on their performance, and give them valuable information to assess the impact of their teaching (Cameron, 2001). It is argued that effective teaching also takes place where there is reflective practice (Day, 2009). Reflective practices are considered as the brick and motor for effective teaching. Gagne (2007) added that without routinely engaging in reflective practice, it is unlikely that we will be able to understand the effects of our motivations, prejudices, and aspirations upon the ways in which we create, manage, receive, sift, and evaluate knowledge; and as importantly, the ways in which we are influencing the lives, directions, and achievements of those whom we nurture and teach.

On the other hand one may believe that effective teaching takes place if teachers have been exposed to the foundations of education. Philosophy of education is central to the practice of teaching (Hill, 2004). In this regard, Cameron (2001) suggested that as we learn more about the teacher, we are likely to come closer to understanding how effective teachers are made and concluded that knowledge of effective pedagogical practices seem to be topical in coming up with the profile of effective teaching.

Ghana government had invested very heavily in human resources development in order to improve the quality of teaching in schools and concluded that availability of

material resources is a factor that contributes to effective teaching in our schools (Oduro, Dachi, Fertig, & Rarieya, (2007). They further argued that the quality of learning materials such as textbooks is an important ingredient in improving instructions. It is not the buildings themselves that are critical for effective teaching and learning but the quality of the processes that take place within the buildings (Stone, 2002). Physical infrastructures will have an impact if they prevent work from being done. Students exhibiting inattentive behaviour in classrooms or refusing to take teaching notes impacts negatively on the quality of education. Provision of effective teaching in our schools is compromised if no attention is paid to the general physical and psycho-social emotional environment. Despite the government's effort to provide quality resources such as infrastructure materials, qualified personnel, physical facilities, and financial assistance to promote effective teaching in our senior high schools students still perform poorly in their final examinations.

The desire for effective teaching and learning has become a driving force for stakeholders and for the effective future for our youth and the nation at large, hence this study. Teachers need to focus on educational practices that provide all learners with knowledge and skills necessary to contribute to the global society. It is not possible to determine if certain teaching behaviours' are effective without knowing whether or not students learn as an end result of these behaviours'. The challenge for the teacher is not only to identify and develop mastery of certain instructional strategies and behaviours accepted as effective practices, but the teacher is also challenged to develop the ability to effectively match these strategies and behaviours', at the appropriate time, to individual

students and student groups, in specific teaching situations as these relate to the teacher's desired student learning outcomes (Oduro, et al, 2007).

1.2 Statement of the Problem

Despite the fact that the government provides useful and viable resources to positively lift the standards of the education system, in some schools pupils are not able to perform to standard. Pathetically however, students with reference to our senior high schools perform academically poorly in their final examinations. This poor performance has raised a concern due to the fact that the country aims at achieving high technological advancement in the 21st century. This study sought to investigate the major factors that contribute to effective teaching and learning in our senior high schools, specifically, senior high school in Bantama Sub-Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis.

1.3. Purpose of the Study

The main purpose of this study was to investigate the factors that contribute to effective teaching and learning in the public senior high schools in Bantama Sub-Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis.

1.4. Objectives of the Study

The major objectives of this study are to:

1. Determine if teachers' involvement in decision making influences teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub- metro in the Kumasi Metropolis.

- 2. Identify the extent to which teacher personality influences teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis.
- 3. Determine if heads leadership style influence teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis.
- 4. Establish if heads instructional supervision influences teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis.

1.5. Research Questions

The study will be guided by the following research questions:

- 1. How do the teachers' involvement in decision making influence teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis?
- 2. To what extend does teacher personality influence teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis?
- 3. How does the heads leadership style influence teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis?
- 4. How does the heads instructional supervision influence teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis?

1.6. Significance of the Study

The research findings will assist the Ministry of Education in solving some of the problems bedeviling the ineffective teaching and learning. The study will also assist head teachers and the Parents Teachers Associations and School Management Committees in

their endeavour to improving the performance of students in the country. It will help teachers in their choice of appropriate methods of teaching.

1.7. Delimitation of the Study

The study confined itself to a limited number of teachers, specifically, teachers of senior high schools in Bantama Sub-Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis. This was because of lack of time and financial constraints which would not have allowed wider coverage to include head masters and education officers in the Ministry of Education of the Kumasi Metropolis and regional Headquarters.

1.8. Limitation of the Study

The study is limited by the fact that, it could not be generalized to cover the entire Kumasi Metropolis due to time and financial constraints. However, the findings of the study could serve as a basis for replicating the study in other areas of the Kumasi Metropolis.

1.9. Organization of the Study

The study was organized into five chapters. Chapter one deals with the background to the study, statement of problem, purpose of the study, objectives of the study, research questions, significance of the study, delimitation and organization of the study. Chapter two covered review of available literature relevant to the study, while chapter three focused on the research design, population, sample size and sampling technique, instrument for data collection, data collection procedure and analysis. Chapter

four dealt with the analyses of the result of the study and chapter five dealt with the summary of the research findings, conclusion and recommendation of the study.



CHAPTER TWO

REVIEW OF RELATED LITERATURE

2.1. Introduction

In this chapter, the researcher reviews literature relevant to the study. That is the researcher looks at the relevant literature under the following headings:

2.2. Concept of Learning

According to Strauss (2005) learning is about a change: the change brought about by developing a new skill, understanding a scientific law, changing an attitude. The change is not merely incidental or natural in the way that our appearance changes as we get older. Dessus and Lemaire (2002) added that learning is a relatively permanent change, usually brought about intentionally and noted that other learning can take place without planning, for example by experience. Generally with all learning there is an element within us of wishing to remember and understand why something happens and to do it better next time (Strauss, 2005).

There is little disagreement among psychologists as to the importance of learning and the pervasiveness in nearly all forms of human activity; however, there is a marked difference in the ways they look at learning (Dessus & Lemaire, 2002). There is no universally acceptable definition of learning, and indeed all psychological concepts. Talking about learning, it is probably the topic which is closest to the heart of psychology. A huge body of literature on the subject matter of learning has been piled up by educational psychologists in their attempt to fathom out the characteristics and applications of learning. Hence, huge and diverse theories were developed in respect of learning (Pratt, 2002).

To Zimmerman (2000) learning cannot be directly observed but can manifest itself in the activities of the individual. Human beings, more than all other living organisms, have the greater capacity to learn in all ways, and through language, we can learn things we have neither experienced nor observed. According to Hyman (2000), varying definitions have been given by different psychologists on the meaning of learning. These definitions however seem to converge on certain trends which highlight the characteristics of learning. Miller (2008) defined learning as a relatively permanent change in an organism's behaviour due to experience. Similarly, Bruner (2003) gave the meaning of learning as an inference from some performance of the organism resulting in an enduring change of behaviour. Sullivan and Gervasoni (2000) defined learning as a relatively permanent change in behavioural potentiality that occurs as a result of reinforced practice.

Hedge (2000) noted the following definitions of learning to include:

- Learning is the process of the formation relatively permanent neural circuits through the simultaneous activity of the elements of the circuits-to-be; such activity is of the nature of change in cell structures through growth in such a manner as to facilitate the arousal of the entire circuit when a component element is aroused or activated.
- Learning refers to the change in a subject's behaviour to a given situation brought about by his repeated experiences in that situation, provided that the behaviour change cannot be explained on the basis of native response tendencies, maturation temporary states of the subject.

Ohlsson (2006) sums up common usage of the word learn as "to gain knowledge or understanding or skill by study, instruction, or experience." The word "gain" in this definition is very important. It implies addition of new knowledge.

From the above definitions, there are key elements that elucidate the nature and characteristics of learning (Ohlsson, 2006). These are:

- Learning exhibits itself as a change in behaviour.
- Inference is made about learning by comparing the subject's initial behaviour before he was placed in the "Learning Situation" and what behaviour exhibited after the treatment.
- The change may be an increased capability in performance, altered disposition in attitude, interest or value.
- This change must not be momentary, it must be relatively permanent. It should be retained over some period of time.
- Lastly, the change must be distinguishable from the kind of change that is attributed to growth, such as change in height or the development of muscles through exercise.

When there is evidence of the kind of change given above in behaviour, learning has taken place.

Behaviour is a neural reaction to a given stimulus and it may be Overt or Covert. Learning is associated with both overt and covert behaviours' (Ohlsson, 2006). Thus; psychologists have provided certain criteria for determining whether learning has taken place. First, for learning to be said to have taken place, there must be the element of change in behaviour overtly or covertly. Second, the change in behaviour as result of

fatigue or other transitory conditions such as use of drugs or alcohol do not constitute learning. The third criterion is that the change in behaviour must be based on exposure to the environment. Environment here refers to learning situations or any situation that allows one to gain some experience. Learning, therefore, involved a change in the behaviours' of the individual as a consequence of his or her experience. This can manifest in the way the individual thinks (cognitive), acts (psychomotor) or feels (affective). However, the change of behaviour must not be due to such transitory conditions caused by taking drugs or alcohol; and must not be due to maturation.

Ohlsson (2006) noted the following as the basic characteristics of learning:

- 1. Learning has to change behaviour;
- 2. The change should be relatively permanent;
- 3. The change should be as a result of experience;
- 4. Learning is an internal process;
- 5. Learning occurs under conditions of directed attention and deliberate effort; and
- 6. Learning is distinct from biological maturation and imprinting

2.3. The Element of the Human Learning Event

According to Sullivan and Gervasoni (2000), there are four elements that constitute the event of learning. These are:

Learner: The learner is a human being who possesses sense organs, through which he receives stimulation; a Brain, by means of which the signals originating in his senses are

transformed in a number of complex ways; and a set of muscles, by means of which he exhibits the various performances that show what he has learned.

The stimulation that is constantly being received is organized into various patterns of neural activity, which are stored in his memory in such a way that they can be recovered. Such memories may then be translated into action that may be observed as the movement of muscles in executing responses of various sorts.

The Stimulation: All the events that stimulate the learner's senses are collectively called the stimulus situation.

Previous Knowledge in the Memory: The content of the learner's memory which is often recovered is another input in learning. Such content had already been organized from previous learning materials.

The Response: The action that results from these inputs and their subsequent transformation is called Response.

2.4. Factors Contributing to Effective Teaching and Learning

According to Spillane (2003), there are lot of important factors that contribute to effective teaching and learning. For the purpose of this study, teachers' involvement in decision making, teachers' personality, heads' leadership styles and heads' leadership effectiveness were discussed.

2.4.1. Concepts of Decision-Making

Northouse (2010) emphasized that various authors define decision making differently. He noted that while some focus on the process involved in decision making,

others emphasize the problem solved during a decision making. Rue and Byars (2000) define decision-making as the process of specifying the nature of particular problem and selecting among available alternatives in order to solve the problem. This definition of decision-making indicates that a problem precedes any decision and that there must be a number of alternative courses of action from which an optimum course will be selected.

Fullan (2001) also define decision and decision making as follows: A decision can be defined as a conscious choice action from among a well-defined set of often competing alternatives. Thus, decision-making is a sequential process culminating in a single decision or series of decisions (choices) which stimulate moves or actions. The sequences of activities called decision-making result in the selection of course of action from alternative course intended bring about the future state affairs envisage.

Decisions are a composite of values, facts, and assumptions. Each or all of these may be subject to change from time. Decision—making, therefore, is not a one-time activity but rather a continuing enterprise (Rue & Byars, 2000). Every successful organization must make decision that enable the organization to achieve its goal and which meet the critical needs of members of the organization (Luthans, 2005). Moreover, Arnold and Feldman (2006) state that decisions are made daily in school about the conduct of work, the distribution of resources, and short term goals. Decision involve policies (the definition of objectives), resources (people, money materials, and authority), and means of execution (integration and synthesis). In so far as the value content of this type of decision is concerned, the school principal should identify two major values; policy decision that seek purposive action; executing decision that seek coordination's of action (Luthans, 2005). Thus, decision-making is very important and significant in school

and in any organization at large to conduct work, distribute resources, plan short-term and long-term of bring about the future state of affairs as an intention, and activities of the school. Moreover, a school leaders' main job is to lead the school through effective decision making, and quite often they have to decide on what is to be done, who to do it, and when and where is to be done.

2.4.2. Rationale for Teachers' Participation in School Decision Making

Teacher participation in decision—making has been advanced for a variety of reason. Most often, participation is thought to enhance communication among teachers and school heads and improve the quality of educational decision making. It is also thought that participation may contribute to the quality of teachers work life that in turn improves teaching and learning (Luthans, 2005). Furthermore, because teachers have an opportunity to be involved in and to exert influence on decision-making processes, their participation is believed to increase willingness to implement them in class, hence to promote effective teaching and learning Likert, (2007). This implies that teacher's involvement in decision-making has been identified as an important contributor to successful teaching and learning. It also means that it is not only facilitating implementation of decision but also leads teacher to feel respected and empowered. Moreover, teachers' participation in school decision making builds trust, helps teachers acquires new skills, increase school effectiveness in teaching and learning.

Aggarwal (2003) found five major benefits of impact of increased decisionmaking authority on teacher work life: improve teacher moral, better informed teachers, improve teacher communication within and across school, improve student motivation

and increased incentives that serve to attract and retain quality teachers. The participation of teachers in decision-making was perceived as forgoing links between administrators and teachers (Blasé, 2003). The important decision-making in educational organizations has been recognized as a key function required by administrators. In school where a clear commitment in students learning is apparent, participatory decision making by the teachers is crucial to the overall effective operation of the school (Barth, 2001). Goldstein (2003) also state that teachers' involvement in decision making ensures that teachers in the school take ownership of the decision, and are willing to defend decision taken through collaborative means. This means that teachers' involvement in decision making results in a great sense of commitment and ownership of decisions.

Barth (2001) indicated that there had been several benefits of teachers empowered to be involved in the school decision making. First of all, teachers in the school empowered for the development of self-managing teams might draw forth work commitment and initiative of them likewise; teachers at school empowered could contribute to the increase of effective teaching and learning. According to Harris (2004) there is a strong positive correlation between teacher involvement in decision making and effective teaching and learning. Teachers' participation in decision making would encourage them to understand how policies were planned and designed. The involvement might promote teachers' commitment to these school policies and increase their motivation to implement them as well (Mullins, 2004). This commitment derived mainly from teachers' responsibility for those decisions for their participation as decision makers. The decisions made by teachers could be easier implemented by them than before in that they were under obligation to enforce them in a satisfactory way.

Second, teacher participation in decision making presented crucial information closest to the sources of problems of schooling, improving the quality of decisions effectively that in turn improves teaching and learning (Brown & Cregan, 2008). Traditionally, teachers passively accepted the decisions made by their heads, obliged to implement the policies or projects which they did not participate in at all. These decisions might be questioned for they had no access to the classroom realities or even not practicable. Teachers were the very ones who taught and instructed students in the classroom and who were responsible for their learning directly. They could realize the authentic need of students' learning within the classroom instead of those head teachers outside it. Thus it was of vital importance for a school head to empower teachers to support with each other's to acquire knowledge and skills to meet the needs of student learning, which would improve the quality of decision making (Harris & Spillane, 2008).

Third, from the perspective of critical theory, supposing teachers were more empowered, they would hold the more important status quo (Ingersoll, 2006). Teachers were traditionally viewed as the silenced in the process of decision making due to their less chances to be involved in crucial school matters. Voiceless as teacher were always seen, it was not true that teachers had no voices for the operation and management of their own schools. Thus it would be the oppression of the hierarchal administrative school system that kept all of teachers who were important members of school voiceless (Mullins, 2004). In case schools became more democratic organizations by encouraging teachers' participation in decision making in the manner of school restructuring, school then would transformed into the sites for reconstructing society, further resulting in the equity of society eventually with improved teaching and learning (Blasé, 2003).

As noted previously, there would be three strengths of teachers' involvement in school decision making, including the enhancement of teacher commitment, the improvement of quality of decision making, and the contribution to the school restructuring. These three strengths revealed the three levels of changes toward teachers, decisions, and schools (Spillane, 2006). As to the teacher level, the involvement could help them be engaged more in school matters. As for the decision level, the participation of teachers would effectively monitor which and how school decisions should be made. As to the school level, teachers' roles as active participants were able to lead to the successful restructuring of schools (Spillane, 2006).

2.5. Personality

According to Church (2007), a person personality is a relatively stable precursor of behavior; it underlies an enduring style of thinking, feeling and acting. However, Ogunsola (2003) stated that personality can be defined as a predisposition to act or behave in a characteristic fashion in response to one's environment. Thus personality is the characteristics of the person that account for consistent patterns of feeling, thinking and behaving.

2.5.1. Dimensions of Personality

Cooper and Bemis (2011) indicated the dimensions of personality to include; extroversion, agreeableness, conscientiousness, neuroticism and openness.

2.5.1.1. Extroversion

According to Common (2004), extraverts tend to seek interaction with others, novel experiences and complex, varied and intense stimuli, extroverts, on the other hand, prefer their own company and prefer the familiar and unfamiliar. While McCrae and Costa (2007) stated that extroverts are gregarious, assertive, activity and excitement-seeking. It is similar with Polk (2006) who mentioned that extraversion is most often described as the degree to which an individual is sociable, gregarious, talkative, assertive, adventurous, active, energetic and ambitious. This implies that extroverts have been found to be socially engaging, gregarious, assertive, expressive, articulate, and comfortable in group settings and have a great number of friends (Common, 2004).

Laye (2005) also emphasized that extraverts tend to be high in positive affectivity, self-efficacy and optimism and concluded that extraversion represents various aspects such as sociable, gregarious, assertive and talkative. However, Dodge (2003) added that extroversion is about the extent to which people are comfortable in social relationships, how socially inhibited, and the extrovert who is comfortable in social relationships and socially uninhibited. To Henson and Chambers (2003) people high in extroversion tend to be high performers and committed to the organization and their work. They will develop psychological contracts that reflect their hard work, commitment and willingness to work with others.

2.5.1.2. Agreeableness

According to Fisher and Kent (2008), agreeableness is associated with "the need for intimacy", the recurrent preference in thought and behavior for experience of warm, close and communicative interactions with others. Individuals high in agreeableness are

trusting, cooperative, altruistic, compliant and "moved by others". However, De Fruyt and Mervielde (2006) emphasized that high agreeable individuals may in their pursuit of harmonious relations generate more positive attributions to otherwise provocative behavior than low-agreeable persons would do. This to me implies that agreeableness is related to "pro-social motives", aimed at seeking good outcomes for one-self as well as for other group members. To De Raad and Schouwenburg (2006) stated that agreeable individuals have greater motivation to achieve interpersonal intimacy.

While, Goldsmith (2009) who mentioned that agreeableness describes the courteous, sympathetic, tender-hearted and kind characteristics, Hawk (2003) indicated that those who are low in agreeableness have been described as antagonistic, competitive, cynical, callous, ruthless and cruel, and they tend to experience and express hostility. This means that agreeableness is about the extent to which people are sensitive and responsive to others, including the extent to which they will defer to them. The two extremes are the tough-minded individual, operating predominantly at a thinking level and lacking sensitivity and responsiveness, and the tender-minded individual, operating predominantly at a feelings level and displaying sensitivity and responsiveness (Church, 2007). This further implies that agreeable individuals can be described as good-natured, cheerful and caring. Therefore an individual high in agreeableness is fundamentally altruistic.

2.5.1.3. Conscientiousness

Cohen and Latan (2005) mentioned that conscientious individuals have been characterized as dependable, responsible, hard-working, self-disciplined, persistent, planful and organized. Similarly with Church (2007) who mentioned that conscientious people value duty, competence, self-discipline and achievement. Besides, Mori and Tanabe (2012) also mentioned that conscientiousness consist of the specifics traits of competence, order, dutifulness, achievement striving, self-discipline and deliberation. This means that individuals high in conscientiousness are characterized as being responsible, careful, preserving, orderly, cautious, planful, hardworking and achievement-oriented. To Anwana (2004) people high in conscientiousness have a sense of duty and obligation to their work and have high job performance, career success, motivation and job satisfaction. However, Anwana (2004) further emphasized that conscientiousness refers to characteristics such as being organized, orderly, precise and efficient. This implies that conscientious is about the number of goals that an individual pursues and the extent to which they pursue them in a focused way.

2.5.1.4. Neuroticism

Neuroticism is always related to the characteristics of people who have negative affect and low in self-esteem. According to Anwana (2004) negative affect is defined by a propensity to view the world in a negative emotional state. Similarly with Cooper and Bemis (2011), that indicated that individuals high in negative affect tend to focus on the negative aspects of other people and themselves. Anwana (2004) added the same view which individuals high in negative affectivity, a concept related to the neuroticism are likely to be more pessimistic, taking a negative view of themselves and the world around

them. While Ajala (2010) indicated that persons low in self-esteem and self-efficacy look to others for approval. This implies that individuals with low self-esteem will tend to withdraw from challenging situations, are less confident in their abilities, less likely to seek feedback, and see themselves as less appealing to others. To Anwana (2004) neuroticism has been found to be negatively related to self-esteem, self-efficacy and locus of control. Both of these characteristics are supported by Chamorro-Premuzic and Furnham (2005) as characteristic in neuroticism, which they mentioned that neuroticism is composed of several characteristics including low self-esteem and negative affectivity. However, Cooper and Bemis (2007) claimed that neuroticism consists of the specific traits of anxiety, angry hostility, depression, self-consciousness, impulsiveness and vulnerability.

2.5.1.5. **Openness**

According to Cooper and Bemis (2007), openness to experience is related to active imagination, aesthetic sensitivity, and attentiveness to inner feelings, preference for variety, intellectual curiosity, and independence of judgment. Cooper and Bemis (2007) further stated that high openness employees seek challenging and interesting work and would expect the organization to satisfy this need. This implies that individuals who are open have a high need for autonomy and tend to be creative, adaptive and accepting of change. Similar with Moscoso and Salgado (2004) which indicated that open individuals are also at time better able to understand and adapt to new perspectives. This means that individuals who score high on openness should be more likely to report involvement in their work, as their work can serve as the arena to entertain their curiosity, their appetite for exploring new perspectives, and their tendency to develop genuine

interests for any activities they are involved in. While, Murray and Paunonen (2000) emphasized that openness to experience or creativity refers to personal characteristics such as being imaginative, original and curious. This means that openness is more on openness to the new experience or change.

2.6. Teachers Personality and Effective Teaching and Learning

Personality may be viewed as the dynamic organization of those traits and characteristic patterns of behavior that are unique to the individual (Barrick & Mount, 2001). Laidra and Allik (2006) define personality as those aspects of an individual's behaviour, attitudes, beliefs, thought, actions and feelings which are seen as typical and distinctive of that person and recognized as such by that person and others. Cooper and Bemis (2007) referred to personality as an individual's characteristic patterns of thought, combination of behaviour and emotion with mechanisms of psychology behind those patterns.

According to Cooper and Bemis (2007) a person personality is a relatively stable precursor of behaviour and it underlies an enduring style of thinking, feeling and acting. They indicated that personality is a predisposition to act or behave in a characteristic fashion in response to one's environment.

The relationship could be identified through the relationship between personality and job performance which leads to the achievement of teaching effectiveness. In term of job performance which is related to the teaching effectiveness, Cooper and Bemis (2007) found that there are positive relationships between personality traits and teaching effectiveness. Laidra and Allik (2006) added that there is a consistent and positive relationship with students learning and teacher's personality trait. It is supported by Mori

and Tanabe (2012) which they stated that personality has been found to be valid predictors of teaching and learning.

Mori and Tanabe (2012) once again indicated that teacher personality is the most potent and consistent correlate of teaching. It is also supported by Farrant (2004) where, desired personalities of teachers as perceived by students improve the students learning abilities.

2.7. Heads Leadership Styles and Teachers Effective Teaching and Learning

Effective management of an educational institution requires that the head teachers should be well versed in the key areas of educational leadership. Leadership is the means through which the leader guides the behaviour of other people towards goal accomplishment (Harris, 2000). Anderson (2004) defines leadership as the process of influencing and supporting others to work enthusiastically towards achieving the objectives. It is the catalyst that transforms potential into reality and the ultimate act that identifies, develops channels and enriches the potential already in an organization and its people. Brewer (2003) defines leadership as the ability of a manager to induce subordinates to work with confidence and zeal. Harris (2000) notes that leadership is the interpersonal influence towards attainment of specific goals in specific situations. He also observes that without leadership, organizations were nothing but masses of individuals. Management of teachers in the school context involves the skillful control and guidance of teachers in order to achieve the school desired outcomes. The head teacher plays an important role in this aspect. The nature and quality of the leadership and management that the head teacher provides determines the effectiveness of the school (Copland, 2003).

School leadership plays a key role in improving school's outcomes by influencing the motivation and capacities of teachers as well as the school climate and environment that in turn improve teaching and learning (Macfarlane, 2011). The head teacher must employ inclusive kind of leadership where they will involve teachers as a team. This team gets a deliberate opportunity to contribute to effective teaching and learning, culture and climate of the school and thus the head teacher has a duty to create the opportunities to make this happen and teachers partly determine the leadership styles of the head teacher (Macfarlane, 2011). Thus head teachers have the capacity to influence teaching and learning through their leadership style.

Harris and Lambert (2003) noted that heads leadership styles had been one of the most popular research topics in teachers work performance. The importance of leadership styles had lot to do with the school success and teachers work commitment and good teaching and learning climate (Bass, 1990). Northouse (2013) on the other hand showed that heads leadership styles was positively related to teachers effective teaching and learning and therefore head teachers needed to adopt appropriate leadership style in order to improve teaching and learning in their schools. Leadership style affects a range of factors such as job satisfaction, teachers' performance, students learning and stress and so contribute to the school success (Harris & Lambert (2003).

Every educational setting is structured in groups of subordinates acting under the control and guidance of the head (Middlewood & Abbott, 2012). Effective leadership must filter through in the institution, not exist in one or two superstars at the top (Pearce & Conger, 2003). This implies that head teachers leadership styles have a powerful influence on individual teacher working behavior.

According to Gronn (2003), leadership seems to be marshaling of skills possessed by a majority but used by minority. It is something that can be learned by anyone, taught to everyone and denied to no one. Knight (2008) corroborates this view when they stated that any member of the organization may become a leader, it is not the property of the executives. The leaders in successful situations work and share their wisdom with others to stimulate and create conditions which support efforts of their subordinates. The head with an ideal leadership style significantly affect teachers teaching (Fullan, 2002).

Being social institutions, the growth of schools are linked closely with the heads leadership styles. As leadership is the combination of influence and power, the concept of school change studies may be disturbed seriously if we neglect it. The head teachers who are effective and committed motivate their teachers and learners, and retain professional academic environment in their institutions improves teaching and learning (Goleman, 2002). Head teachers leadership effectiveness is assessed by teachers work commitment to the leader, group cohesiveness and teachers' development (Goleman, 2002).

It has been observed that leadership is a personal quality and willingness of people to follow a person as leader. It exists only with followers. It is meaningless without adherents. Leadership involves readiness to accept complete responsibility in all situations. Leadership styles may change under different circumstances. This implies that head teachers can stimulate the teachers to strive willingly for attainment of the school objectives. According to Dimmock (2003), a leader must have the ability to sway the behaviour, attitude, and belief of his/ her subordinates. The success of a leader depends on the acceptance of his leadership by the followers (Anderson, 2004). A leader gives orders and instructions by formulating objectives for his group; he takes important

decisions, listens to subordinates, and responds to their needs. A leader is careful to inspire and motivate all members of his group and represent them to the outside world.

It is obvious that leadership is the appropriate use of power. There are two common types of power; position and personal power. The capacity to affect the behaviour of people is called power (Elmore, 2000). Sometimes power comes from person's position in the organization, while other sources of power are based on personal characteristics. So leader's power exists in the forms of position and personal (Fullan, 2001).

Leadership styles are the characteristic way in which a leader uses power, makes decision, and interacts with others. Leadership style is an inbuilt, relatively enduring attribute of our personality which provides us motivation and determines our general orientation when exercising leadership Dimmock (2003). The leadership style of a head teacher is the combination of behaviours as task and relationship. It is important to note that leadership behaviour refers to particular acts which one could perform or not perform if one has knowledge and skills.

2.7.1. Leadership and Quality Learning

Harris (2003) emphasized that the key feature of head teacher leadership style is centralized on effective teaching and learning. Fullan (2007) sees the moral purpose of head teacher leadership style as to improve student outcomes. This then implies that head teacher leadership style connects to the quality of teaching and learning through the structures, systems, procedures and practices that combine to make the school a learning organization. Although the leadership of the head teacher has been found to have an indirect influence on pupil learning, the head teacher can improve teaching and learning

powerfully through his/her influence on teachers motivation and good school climate. When head exhibit desired leadership style, his or her administration is brought closer to the site of learning; it has a greater influence on schools and students (Harris & Lambert, 2003). Gronn (2002) makes the link between head teacher leadership style and the quality of teachers teaching and student learning.

Another concept that links heads leadership styles is that of students learning. Students learning may be viewed as an extension of heads leadership style. For example, Harris and Muijs (2005) identified four dimensions of the head teacher leadership role that extends to the overall operation of the school. This head leadership role influence teachers to:

- 1. Translate the principles of school improvement into the practices of individual classrooms;
- 2. Assist other teachers to cohere around a particular development and foster a more collaborative way of working;
- 3. Play a mediating role in school improvement.
- 4. Forge close relationships with individual teachers where mutual learning takes place.

Harris (2002) also sees head teacher leadership style leadership as being closely linked to the effective learning of the students. This implies that heads effective leadership styles forge close relationships with individual teachers that improve working and learning together, constructing and refining meaning are all evidence of the school learning environment.

2.7.2. Heads Leadership Style and School Improvement

Engaging teachers in leadership activities are the foundation of effective leadership and where positive effects of such leadership clearly have been demonstrated, teaching and learning improves. Blasé and Blasé (2004) have shown that student outcomes are more likely to improve when leadership sources are distributed throughout the school community and when teachers are empowered in areas of expertise. Such an emphasis on decentralized leadership informs the increasing focus on the role of teacher leadership and the development of the contribution of teachers in making decisions about the approaches to educating students (Beach & Reinhartz, 2000). To Drake (2003), effective schools have desired leadership style that in turn had greater educational and social cohesiveness.

From an effective leadership styles perspective, effective head teachers do not just string together a series of individual teacher's actions, but systematically distribute leadership by building it into the fabric of school life (Nakpodia, 2006). Effective leadership style is distributed not by delegating it or giving it away, but by weaving together people, materials, and organizational structures in a common cause for the success of the school. Blasé and Blasé (2000) added that improving head teacher leadership style holds tremendous potential in helping schools bolster student academic performance.

2.8. Relationship between Instructional Supervision and Effective Teaching and Learning

The instructional supervision is to help teachers improve, and this improvement could be on what teachers know, the improvement of teaching skills, as well as teacher's ability to make more informed professional decisions (Sergiovanni & Starratt, 2007). Instructional supervision is an important tool in building effective teachers' professional development. This means that instructional supervision is an institutional function concerned with teacher growth, leading to improvement in teaching performance and greater student learning. Daresh (2006), emphasized that continuous improvement in methods and skills is necessary for every professional, and so the professional development of teachers has become highly important.

According to Zepeda (2003), instructional supervision to professional development, to teaching and learning. She added that the various approaches of instructional supervision such as clinical supervision, peer coaching, cognitive coaching, mentoring, etc. have their contributions to enhance teachers' teaching and learning. Farley (2010), also indicated that there is a significant link between instructional supervision and teachers teaching and learning. To Farley (2010) they are inter-linked and inter-dependent. Supporting this, Sullivan and Glanz (2000) on the other hand, stated that as fields of educational setting, instructional supervision and teaching and learning are interlinked and can and should overlap as needs and local preferences dictate.

Instructional supervision and professional development or teaching and learning are linked in several ways. As Wenzare (2012) noted one connection to be through the use of data obtained from supervision practices used in planning and implementing staff

development as part of instructional improvement and helping teachers improve their skills. Instructional supervision is the service provided to help teachers in order to facilitate their own teaching and learning so that the goals of the school might be better attained. This boils down to mean that instructional supervision aims at improving the quality of education by improving the teacher's effectiveness. Tyagi (2010) also said that the improvement of the teaching-learning process is dependent upon teacher attitudes towards supervision.

2.8.1. Relationship between Instructional Supervision and Teachers' Performance

Pajak (2002) noted that availability of supervision in schools was minimal such that being inexistence. From his findings also showed that supervision was distorted by the partaker of study. Further, to ensure quality and eminence inspection and repeatedly monitoring of instruction's and education curriculum services which would enhance better teachers' performance. According to Sergiovanni and Starratt (2002), supervision as designated tools in school administration to help and facilitates only qualified professional teacher with skills to cater for learning and teaching' pupils. In the same manner, Certo (2006) affirmed that there is minimal of instructional supervision in schools. Sergiovanni (2001) showed that minimal professional teachers require extra instructional supervision to improve teaching and learning, though professional teachers preferred the freedom they relaxed luxury by not being assessed. A study by Certo (2006), on the other hand revealed that effective teaching and learning depended on instructional supervision.

Teacher's performance refers to the action and behaviours' of teachers that affect the goals of an institution. Instructional supervision entails those activities designed to improve instruction in an institution (Daresh, 2006). This implies that instructional supervision is a joint linked between the teacher's performances. Archibong (2010), on the other hand, showed that there was a link between teacher's teaching and learning and instructional supervision. This to Archibong (2010) heads instructional supervision make teaching and learning effective.

Zepeda (2003) suggested that there are benefits of instructional supervision toward the teachers in a way that upgrade lifelong learning skills and an enthusiasm to professional raise up and growth. Therefore from the explanation above it is seen that the heads of schools instructional supervision influence teachers work performance.

2.9. Summary of Literature Review

From the related literature reviewed for this study, it was revealed that, several factors contributed to effective teaching and learning in schools. As Spillane (2003) put it, there are a lot of important factors that contribute to effective teaching and learning which include teachers' involvement in decision making, teachers' personality, heads' leadership style and heads' leadership effectiveness. The literature reviewed for the purpose of this study again revealed that, instructional supervision is an important tool in building effective teachers' professional development. This means that, instructional supervision is an institutional functions concerned with teacher growth leading to improvement in teaching performance and greater student learning.

Giving that little or no research work exist as far as these factors are concern in the study area, it justifies the need to undertake this research to ascertain the extent to

which factors reviewed in the literature will supports or rejects the teachers' view on the factors that contribute to effective teaching and learning in the Senior High Schools in Bantama Sub Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis.



CHAPTER THREE

METHODOLOGY

3.1. Introduction

This chapter describes the research methodology applied in this study. The discussions in this chapter include; research design, study area, population of the study, sample and sampling techniques, research instruments, and data analyses techniques.

3.2. Research Design

The study was carried out, using a cross-sectional survey design, to investigate the impact of teachers' nonverbal communication on students' learning outcomes. Cross sectional survey was appropriate because extensive data could be collected at one point in time and it was very economical (Ghauri & Gronhaug, 2005). Cross-sectional survey was also appropriate because data could be collected from a cross section of a population in a short time and then results generalized to represent the entire population of the study (Amin, 2005).

To be able to gather the necessary data, the researcher utilized the descriptive method, using quantitative research approaches. Descriptive method of research is a fact-finding study that involves adequate and accurate interpretation of findings. Descriptive research describes a certain present condition. Relatively, the method is appropriate to this study since it aims to assess the impact of teachers' nonverbal communication on students learning outcomes.

Though the study was quantitative oriented approach, there were open- ended questions. This will enable the teachers as respondents, to widely express their views on the subject under investigation. Moreover, this will help to achieve high validity of results and can therefore be used to construct more complex research problems (Kothari, 2004). This will also allow simultaneous description of views, perceptions and beliefs at any single point in time (Babbie & Mouton, 2004).

3.3. Population of the Study

According to Creswell (2009), research population is a group of people from which a sample can be drawn. Population is the total collection of elements about which we wish to make some inferences. The target population for the study comprised of 342 Senior High school teachers in three senior high schools in the Bantama Sub-Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis of Ashanti Region of Ghana. The table below illustrates the distribution of the study population and sample selected.

Table 3.1: Distribution of the Study Population and Sample Selected

Number of Teachers	Number of Sample
112	39
128	44
102	35
342	118
	112 128 102

3.4. Sample and Sampling Technique

Patton (2002) emphasized on two main sampling techniques namely; probability and non-probability sampling. Probability sampling technique is the sampling process whereby randomness is essential and key element in the process, whiles non-probability sampling technique is based on the judgment of the researcher.

From the target population, a sample of 118 teachers were chosen based on the Frankel and Wallen (2003) assumption that in descriptive cross sectional design, sample size ranging between 15% to 35% is representative. For the purpose of this study 35% was used in order to get a high representative sample. With the use of simple random sampling technique, "YES" or "NO" was written on pieces of paper and folded. Teachers who selected the "YES" were selected.

3.5. Research Instrument

The main instruments that were used to collect information for the study were the questionnaire. The questionnaire was structured to consist mostly of closed ended type of questions. Questionnaires were administered to the various categories of the respondents. The teachers' questionnaire had 21 items. The items 1 to 5 measured teachers' involvement in decision making influence teaching and learning. Items 6 to 12 also measured teachers' personality and its influence on teaching and learning, items 13 to 17 measured heads' leadership style and its influence on teaching and learning while items 18 to 21 also measured heads' instructional supervision and its influence on teaching and learning. Each statement on the students outcome questionnaire is followed by a five-

point Likert-type scale (Strongly Disagree = 1, Disagree = 2, Not Sure = 3, Agree = 4, and Strongly Agree = 5). The internal consistency for this questionnaire was found to be (alpha = 0.88) after piloting it at Islamic SHS with 30 teachers.

3.6. Testing Validity and Reliability of the Instrument

The instruments questionnaire was reviewed by the researcher's supervisor. This was to ensure content validity which according to Yin (2003), constitute face and sampling validity. The content validation was therefore found appropriate in determining the extent to which the set of items provided relevant and representative sample of the domain of tasks under consideration (Creswell, 2003). The researcher ensured that data collected using various instruments represents the content area under study. This included identifying the relevant items for each of the instruments to be used in the study.

The data collected from the pilot study was used to compute the reliability of the instruments. Cronbach's coefficient alpha method was used to determine internal consistency of the items. This method is appropriate owing to the fact that it requires only one administration of the test (Bogden & Biklen, 2007). It is also appropriate where items have got choices (Patton, 2002). In the study, the items were considered reliable if they yielded a reliability coefficient of 0.88.

3.8. Data Collection Procedure

Structured questionnaires containing close ended questions were administered to respondents. This was done during school days between 10 am - 2:00 pm. The researcher visited each school and interacted with the head master and with the heads' assistance; the researcher appointed a research assistant that helped in the handing

of the questionnaires to the teachers and collected the questionnaire later after completion of the instrument.

3.9. Data Analysis Procedure

After sorting out the questionnaires, the data were computed and analyzed, using the Statistical Package of Social Sciences (SPSS) version 16.0. The statistical analysis such as frequencies, percentages and mean were used to answer the research questions.

3.10. Ethical Considerations

In the conduct of the research, the questionnaire was drafted in a very clear and concise manner to prevent conflicts among respondents. People who participated in the research were given ample time to respond to the questions posed to them to avoid errors and inaccuracies in their answers. The respondents were given a waiver regarding the confidentiality of their identity. The respondents' cooperation was eagerly sought for, and they were assured that the data gathered from them would be treated with the strictest confidentiality, so that they would be more open. This was done with the hope that this would promote trust between the researcher and the respondents.

CHAPTER FOUR

DATA PRESENTATION, ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION OF FINDINGS

4.1 Introduction

This chapter is divided into two major sections. The first section provides the demographic characteristics of the respondents. The second section presents the answers and discussions to the study's research questions.

4.2. Response Rate

The researcher administered 118 questionnaire that represented 100% to the teachers, but 105 questionnaires were returned that also represented 89%. This implied that the analysis was based on 105 respondents that represented 100% in the study.

4.3. SECTION A – Demographic Characteristics of Teachers

Table 4.1 below shows the age group of the study respondents. The dominant age group of the teachers ranged between 41 - 50 years representing 53 (50.5%), followed by age group between 31 to 40 years representing 31(29.5%) whereas 51 and above made up the smallest group, representing 7 (6.7%) of the teachers. The age groups less than 31 years were 14(13.3%).

Table 4.1: Age Distribution of Teachers

Age Group	Frequency	Percentage
Less than 31	14	13.3
31 – 40	31	29.5
41 – 50	53	50.5
51+	7	6.7
Total	105 CA7/O	100.0

The sex distribution of the teachers indicated differences with 67 male representing 63.8% and 38 female teachers representing 36.2%. This implies male teachers who participated were more than female participants. Table 4.2 below illustrate this relationship

Table 4.2: Sex Distribution of Teachers

Sex	Frequency	Percentage
Male	67	63.8
Female	38	36.2
Total	105	100.0

In terms of the respondents' education status, Table 4.3 below indicates that 31 of the teachers representing 29.5% were first degree holders, 57 of them representing 54.3% were M.ed holders whiles 17 of them representing 16.2% were Mphil holders.

Table 4.3: Educational Status Distribution of Teachers

Educational Level	Frequency	Percentage
First Degree	31	29.5
M.Ed	OF EISTICATION	54.3
Mphil	17	16.2
Total	105	100.0

With regard to teachers' working experience, Table 4.4 below indicates that 18 of the teachers representing 17.1% reported that they had worked between the years 1 to 5, 11 (10.5%) indicated that they had worked for the years between 6 to 10 years, 50 (46.7%) also reported that they had worked between the years of 11 to 15 years, whiles 26 of them representing 24.8% indicated that they had worked for 16 years and above.

Table 4.4: Teachers Work Experience

Work Experiences	Frequency	Percentage
1 – 5yrs	18	17.1
6 – 10yrs	11	10.5
11 – 15yrs	50	46.7
16+	26	24.8
Total	OF 10UC 105	100.0

4.4. SECTION B – ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSIONS OF RESEARCH QUESTIONS

4.4.1. Research Question One – How do the teachers involvement in decision making influence effective teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama Sub-Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis?

This research question was designed to determine if teachers' involvement in decision making influence teaching and learning and their responses were presented in table 4.5 below.

Table 4.5: Teachers' Involvement in Decision making Influence Effective Teaching and Learning in Senior High School in Bantama Sub-Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis

Statements	SD	D	N	A	SA	M
1. My head not considering teachers suggestions in decision making for running of the schoolis affecting teaching and learning	5(4.8)	23(21.9)	16(15.2)	29(27.6)	32(30.5)	3.57
2. My head not considering teachers view in final decision-making of the school is affecting teaching and learning	10(9.5)	6(5.7)	3(2.9)	46(43.8)	40(38.1)	3.95
3. The head not consulting teachers whenever he/she wants to pass final resolution in school meeting is affecting teaching and learning	6(5.7)	4(3.8)	5(4.8)	38(36.2)	52(49.5)	4.20
4. The head not allowing teachers to demonstrate high degree of innovativeness and creativity in decision making process of the school is affecting teaching and learning	6(5.7)	7(6.7)	4(3.8)	61(58.1)	27(25.7)	3.91
5. The head not encouraging co- operation among the teaching staff during the decision-making process of the school is affecting teaching and learning	14(13.3)	4(3.8)	3(2.9)	37(35.2)	47(44.8)	3.94
Grand Mean			•	-		3.94

Table 4.5 above shows the teachers' views on the teachers' involvement in decision making influence teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama submetro in Kumasi Metropolis. The teachers were asked if their head teachers not considering teachers' suggestions in decision making for running of the schools affect teaching and learning. With this statement, 5 of the teachers representing 4.8% strongly disagreed, 23(21.9%) disagreed, 16(15.2%) were not sure, 29(27.6%) agreed while

32(30.5%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 3.57 implies that averagely the teachers agreed that the head teachers' not considering teachers' suggestions in decision making for the running of the schools affect teaching and learning.

The researcher wanted to find out from the teacher if their head not considering teachers view in final decision-making of the school is affecting teaching and learning and 10 of the teachers representing 9.5% strongly disagreed, 6(5.7%) disagreed, 3(3.8%) were not sure, 46(43.8%) agreed whiles 40(38.1%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 3.95 fell in the category of agreed. This implies that averagely, the teachers agreed that their heads not considering teachers' view in final decision-making of the school is affecting teaching learning.

Moreover, the researcher wanted to find out if heads not consulting teachers whenever he/she wants to pass final resolution in school meeting is affecting teaching and learning and 6 of the teachers representing 5.7% strongly disagreed, 4(3.8%) disagreed, 5(4.8%) were not sure, 38(36.2%) agreed whiles 52(49.5%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 4.20 fell in the category of strongly agreed. This implies that averagely, the teachers strongly agreed that their heads not consulting teachers whenever he/she wants to pass final resolution in school meeting is affecting teaching and learning.

In addition, the researcher wanted to find out from the teacher if their heads not allowing teachers to demonstrate high degree of innovativeness and creativity in decision making process of the school is affecting teaching and learning and 6 of the teachers representing 5.7% strongly disagreed, 7(6.7%) disagreed, 4(3.8%) were not sure, 61(58.1%) agreed whiles 27(25.7%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 3.91 fell in the

category of agreed. This implies that averagely, the teachers agreed that their heads' not allowing teachers to demonstrate high degree of innovativeness and creativity in decision-making process of the school is affecting teaching and learning.

Lastly, I wanted to find out if heads not encouraging co-operation among the teaching staff during the decision-making process of the school is affecting teaching and learning and 14 of the teachers representing 13.3% strongly disagreed, 4(3.8%) disagreed, 3(2.9%) were not sure, 37(35.2%) agreed whiles 47(44.8%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 3.94 fell in the category of agreed. This implies that averagely, the teachers agreed that the heads' not encouraging co-operation among the teaching staff during the decision-making process of the school is affecting teaching and learning.

In summary, majority of the teachers strongly agreed that their heads not consulting teachers whenever he/she wants to pass final resolution in school meeting is affecting teaching and learning. This finding support that of Fred (2005) who noted that if heads do not consult teachers whenever they wants to pass final resolution in school enables teachers become inactive participants in school management processes that hinder effective teaching and learning and concluded that in such situation it results in increased mistrust between heads and the teachers that decline effective teaching.

The finding was in line with Wadesango (2011) who noted that heads involving teachers in the decision making enhances teacher effectiveness, efficiency and high productivity by raising the school's ability to respond rapidly to problems or opportunities in its environment. The finding was also in line with that of Somech (2005)

who noted that teacher's involvement in decision making improve teachers with greater commitment in school based decisions to provide improved teaching and learning.

This finding support Rosenholtz (2005) who claimed that involvement of teachers in decision serve as teacher empowerment that motivates them to improve on their work. This implies that teachers' involvement in decision making is likely to lead to job satisfaction and further increase their efficiency.

4.4.2. Research Question Two – To what extent does teacher personality influence effective teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama Sub-Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis?

Objective of this research question aimed at establishing the extent that teacher personality influences teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis. The teachers' responses are revealed in table 4.6 below

Table 4.6: Extend Teachers Personality Influences Effective Teaching and Learning in Senior High School in Bantama Sub-Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis

Statements	SD	D	N	A	SA	Mean
1. My meticulous and						
perfectionist personality						
influences teaching and learning	6(5.7)	7(6.7)	5(4.8)	69(65.7)	18(17.1)	3.82
2. My friendly and sociable						
relationship influences teaching						
and learning	6(5.7)	8(7.6)	4(3.8)	40(38.1)	47(44.8)	4.09
3. My forceful and controlling						
environment influence teaching						
and learning	6(5.7)	10(9.5)	3(2.9)	31(29.5)	55(52.4)	4.13

Statements	SD	D	N	A	SA	Mean
4. My patient and enduring						
personality influence teaching						
and learning	4(3.8)	5(4.8)	7(6.7)	27(25.7)	62(59)	4.31
5. My attention-seeking						
personality influence teaching						
and learning	6(5.7)	2(1.9)	9(8.6)	44(41.9)	44(41.9)	4.12
6.My fair and free of bias						
personality influence teaching						
and learning	5(4.8)	8(7.6)	7(6.7)	27(25.7)	58(55.2)	4.19
7.My supporting and giving	Sept 100					
sympathy to students influence		4770				
teaching and learning	5(4.8)	6(5.7)	3(2.9)	54(51.5)	38(36.2)	4.10
Grand Mean	. 1		1/2			4.11

Findings in table 4.6 above show the teachers responses on the extent the teacher personality influence teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis. In the first place, I wanted to find out from the teacher how their meticulous and perfectionist personality influence teaching and learning. With this statement, 6 of the teachers representing 5.7% strongly disagreed, 7(6.7%) disagreed, 5(4.8%) were not sure, 69(65.7%) agreed while 18(17.1%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 3.82 implies that averagely the teachers agreed that their meticulous and perfectionist personality influence teaching and learning.

Again, 6(5.7%) strongly disagreed their friendly and sociable influence teaching and learning and 6(5.7%) disagreed, 8(7.6%) were not sure, 40(38.1%) agreed whiles 47(44.8%) strongly agreed to that statement. The mean score of 4.09 fell in the category

of strongly agreed. This implies that averagely, the teachers strongly agreed that their friendly and sociable relationship influence teaching and learning

Moreover, I wanted to find out from the teachers if their forceful and controlling environment influence teaching and learning. With this statement, 6 of the teachers representing 5.7% strongly disagreed, 10(9.5%) disagreed, 3(2.9%) were not sure, 31(29.5%) agreed while 55(52.4%) strongly disagreed. The mean score of 4.13 implies that averagely the teachers strongly agreed that their forceful and controlling environment influence teaching and learning.

The researcher further wanted to find out from the teachers if their patient and enduring personality influence teaching and learning. With this statement, 4 of the teachers representing 3.8% strongly disagreed, 5(4.8%) disagreed, 7(6.7%) were not sure, 27(25.7%) agreed while 62(59%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 4.31 implies that averagely the teachers strongly agreed that their patient and enduring personality influence teaching and learning.

Again, I wanted to find out from the teachers if their attention-seeking personality influence teaching and learning. With this statement, 6 of the teachers representing 5.7% strongly disagreed, 2(1.9%) disagreed, 9(8.6%) were not sure, 44(41.9%) agreed while another 44(41.9%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 4.12 implies that averagely the teachers strongly agreed that their attention-seeking personality influence teaching and learning.

The researcher further wanted to find out from the teachers if their fair and free of bias personality influence teaching and learning. With this statement, 5 of the teachers representing 4.8% strongly disagreed, 8(7.6%) disagreed, 7(6.7%) were not sure,

27(25.7%) agreed while 58(59%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 4.19 implies that averagely the teachers strongly agreed that their fair and free of bias personality influence teaching and learning.

Lastly, I wanted to find out from the teachers if their supporting and giving sympathy to students influence teaching and learning. With this statement, 5 of the teachers representing 4.8% strongly disagreed, 6(5.7%) disagreed, 3(2.9%) were not sure, 54(515%) agreed while 38(36.2%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 4.10 implies that averagely the teachers strongly agreed that their supporting and giving sympathy to students influence teaching and learning.

In summary, majority of teachers strongly agreed that their patient and enduring personality influence teaching and learning. This finding was in line with that of Järlström (2000) who noted that teacher's patient and enduring lead teacher to perform effectively. The finding was in support of Patrick (2011) who claimed that teacher patient and enduring behavior motivate the learners to focus on their studying that improve their learning. Judge and Bono (2000) further noted positive correlation coefficient between personality characteristics patient and endurance and students' effective learning.

The finding was in line with Burns (2008) who noted that teachers dedicate to their students, with an unwavering commitment to their education and well-being improves teaching and learning. Davis (2006) added that in the face of students' frustration, a patient and enduring teacher continues trying to reach each of their students, and they exercise the patience needed to ensure that a disinterested student still learns.

4.4.3. Research Question Three - How do the heads leadership style influence effective teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama Sub-Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis?

The third research question intended to find out from the teachers if their heads' leadership style influence teaching and learning. Their responses were presented in Table 4.7 below.

Table 4.7: Heads Leadership Style Influence Effective Teaching and Learning in Senior High School in Bantama Sub-Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis

		ULCAN.				
Statements	SD	D	N	A	SA	Mean
1. The head master seeing	7.1	77 77	14			
to the welfare of the			1/2			
teachers and students						
influence teaching and	11(10.5)	10(9.5)	13(12.4)	57(54.3)	14(13.3)	3.50
2. The head making every						
member of staff to be						
relevant in the school						
system influences teaching	5(4.8)	3(2.9)	4(3.8)	31(29.5)	62(59)	4.35
3.My head enforcing		TELAN				
discipline among students						
and teachers leads to						
achieving better academic	6(5.7)	8(7.6)	7(6.7)	26(24.8)	58(55.2)	4.16
4. The individual needs of						
the teachers and students						
being considered by the						
head leads to better						
academic performance of	14(13.3)	22(21)	27(25.7)	26(24.8)	16(15.2)	3.08

Statements	SD	D	N	A	SA	Mean
5. Community involvement						
in the school						
administration has positive						
effect on the academic	10(9.5)	15(14.3)	4(3.8)	50(47.6)	26(24.8)	3.64
Grand Mean						3.74

Findings in table 4.7 above show the teachers' responses on the heads' leadership style influencing teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis. In the first place, I wanted to find out from the teachers if their head masters seeing to the welfare of the teachers and students influence teaching and learning. With this statement, 11 of the teachers representing 10.5% strongly disagreed, 10(9.5%) disagreed, 13(12.4%) were not sure, 57(54.3%) agreed while 14(13.3%) strongly disagreed. The mean score of 3.50 implies that averagely the teachers agreed that their headmasters' seeing to the welfare of the teachers and students influence teaching and learning.

Again, 5(4.8%) strongly disagreed that their heads making every members of staff to be relevant in the school system influence teaching and learning, 3(2.9%) disagreed, 4(3.8%) were not sure, 31(29.5%) agreed whiles 62(59%) strongly agreed to that statement. The mean score of 4.35 fell in the category of strongly agreed. This implies that averagely, the teachers strongly agreed that the heads' making every member of staff to be relevant in the school system influence teaching and learning.

Moreover, I wanted to find out from the teachers if head enforcing discipline among students and teachers leads to achieving better academic goals. With this statement, 6 of the teachers representing 5.7% strongly disagreed, 8(7.6%) disagreed,

7(6.7%) were not sure, 26(24.8%) agreed while 58(55.2%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 4.16 implies that averagely the teachers strongly agreed that the heads enforcing discipline among students and teachers leads to achieving better academic goals.

The researcher further wanted to find out from the teachers if individual needs of the teachers and students are considered by the head there will be better academic performance of the students. With this statement, 14 of the teachers representing 13.3% strongly disagreed, 22(21%) disagreed, 27(24.8%) were not sure, 26(24.8%) agreed while 16(15.2%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 3.08 implies that averagely the teachers agreed that if individual needs of the teachers and students are considered by the heads there will be better academic performance of students.

Moreover, I wanted to find out from the teachers if community involvement in the school administration has positive effect on the academic achievement of the students. With this statement, 10 of the teachers representing 9.5% strongly disagreed, 15(14.3%) disagreed, 4(3.8%) were not sure, 50(47.6%) agreed while 26(24.8%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 3.64 implies that averagely the teachers agreed that community involvement in the school administration has positive effect on the academic achievement of the students.

In summary, majority of the teachers strongly agreed that head making every member of staff to be relevant in the school system influence teaching and learning. This finding was in line with Robbins (2003) who noted that teacher recognition is a key determinant to teaching and learning. The finding also support that of Reeve (2001) who claimed that teacher recognition improve job satisfaction that in turn enhance teaching

and learning. Again, the finding was in line with that of Mbua (2003) who indicated that school heads widely agree that teacher recognition is a critical determinant of performance in the school. To them teaching and learning depend on teachers' recognition. The finding concur with that of Gupta (2009)who noted that teachers are encouraged when they feel relevant by their head teachers and that motivate them to work harder. Gupta (2009) further added that teachers are proud to work in such situation even in poor school infrastructure. Okumbe (2008) also added that head teachers recognizing helps to build confidence that in turn improve teachers' performance.

4.4.4. Research Question Four – How does the heads instructional supervision influence effective teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama Sub-Metro in Kumasi Metropolis?

This section of the research question was meant to identify if heads instructional supervision influence teaching and learning.. The teachers' responses were recorded in Table 4.8 as follows:

Table 4.8: Heads Instructional Supervision Influencing Effective Teaching and Learning in Senior High School in Bantama Sub Metro in Kumasi Metropolis

Statements	SD	D	N	A	SA	Mean
1.Heads monitoring students						
discipline influence teaching						
and learning	5(4.8)	14(13.3)	6(5.7)	21(20)	59(56.2)	4.10
2. Heads talking to teachers as						
colleagues and discussing						
classroom affairs with them						
influencing teaching and	. wrst	Car				
learning	4(3.8)	1(1.0)	6(5.7)	46(43.8)	48(45.7)	4.27
3. Heads maintaining school			4			
climate that is conducive for			12			
teaching and learning						
influence teaching and						
learning	4(3.8)	3(2.9)	3(2.9)	18(17.1)	77(73.3)	4.53
4. Heads regularly evaluating						
teachers' instructional						
methods and making						
contribution without						
obviously being judgmental						
influencing teaching and	4(3.8)	2(1.9)	2(1.9)	25(23.8)	72(68.6)	4.51
Grand Mean	. ,	. ,	. ,		. ,	4.35

Table 4.8 above shows the teachers' views on the heads instructional supervision influencing teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis. The teachers were asked if their head teachers monitoring students discipline influencing teaching and learning. With this statement, 5 of the teachers

representing 4.8% strongly disagreed, 14(13.3%) disagreed, 6(5.7%) were not sure, 21(20%) agreed while 59(56.2%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 4.10 implies that averagely the teachers strongly agreed to that statement.

The researcher wanted to find out from the teachers if their head teachers talking to teachers as colleagues and discussing classroom affairs with them influence teaching and learning and 4 of the teachers representing 3.8% strongly disagreed, 1(1.0%) disagreed, 6(5.6%) were not sure, 46(43.8%) agreed whiles 48(45.7%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 4.27 fell in the category of strongly agreed. This implies that averagely, the teachers strongly agreed that heads talking to teachers as colleagues and discussing classroom affairs with them influence teaching and learning.

Moreover, I wanted to find out from the teachers if their head teachers maintaining school climate that is conducive for teaching and learning influencing teaching and learning and 4 of the teachers representing 3.8% strongly disagreed, 3(2.9%) disagreed, 3(2.9%) were not sure, 18(17.1%) agreed whiles 77(73.3%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 4.53 fell in the category of strongly agreed. This implies that averagely, the teachers strongly agreed that their head teachers maintaining school climate that is conducive for teaching and learning influence teaching and learning.

Lastly, I wanted to find from the teachers that if their heads regularly evaluating teachers' instructional methods and making contribution without obviously being judgmental influence teaching and learning and 4 of the teachers representing 3.8% strongly disagreed, 2(1.9%) disagreed, 2(1.9%) were not sure, 25(23.8%) agreed whiles 72(68.6%) strongly agreed. The mean score of 4.51 fell in the category of strongly agreed. This implies that averagely, the teachers strongly agreed that heads' regularly

evaluating teachers' instructional methods and making contribution without being judgmental influence teaching and learning.

Comparison of Factors Influencing Effective Teaching and Learning in Senior High School in Bantama Sub-Metro in Kumasi Metropolis

Even though, teachers' involvement in decision making, teachers' personality, heads' leadership style and heads' leadership effectiveness had impact on teaching and learning, this does not necessarily mean that they have equal impact. Table 4.9 below clearly compares their impact on teaching and learning.

Table 4.9: Summary of Factors Influencing Effective Teaching and Learning in Senior High School in Bantama Sub Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis

Factors Influencing Teaching and Learning	Grand Mean	Severity Rank
Teachers involvement in decision making	3.94	3^{rd}
Teachers Personality	4.11	2^{nd}
Leadership Style	3.74	4 th
Instructional Supervision	4.35	1 st

The grand mean in the above table clearly depicts that teachers strongly agreed that their head masters' instructional supervision highly influences teaching and learning. This was seen on their grand mean scores of 4.35. According to the Likert scale used, 1 = strongly disagree, 2 = disagree, 3 = Not sure, 4 = agree whiles 5 = strongly agree. Looking at the grand mean score of 4.19, it falls in the category of strongly agree. This finding was in line with Etsey (2005) who noted that head teachers instructional

supervision highly yielded effective teaching and learning that in turn improve students' academic performance. The findings also supported that of Rebore (2001) who emphasized that head teachers' instructional supervision in which the heads monitor both students and teachers' discipline enhance teaching and learning; vetting of teachers' lesson notes; regular visits to the classroom to observe teachers' lesson presentation and issuing confidential feedback; observing teachers' attendance and punctuality and regular checking of pupils' exercises to find out teachers' output of work put both teachers and students on their responsibilities. This implies that when head teachers regularly supervise teachers, instructional supervision makes contribution without obviously being judgmental, teaching and learning improve.

This implies that heads instructional supervision and teacher performance in a school is an essential element for the continued effective performance of teachers in a school. Head teacher monitoring enables teachers to improve instruction for pupils to benefit. This means that without supervision, teachers are most unlikely to deliver the desired quality of teaching.

The finding was also in line with Ben and Harris (2005) who noted that good administration practices of head teachers are always reflected in the good performance of the school. This implies that schools that have effective leadership supervision tend to perform well as compared to school that has inefficient head teachers. This shows that head instructional supervision has an impact in teaching and learning.

CHAPTER FIVE

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1. Introduction

This chapter presents a summary of the major findings of the study, which investigates the factors that contribute to effective teaching and learning in the public senior high schools in Bantama Sub-Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis. This chapter includes the summary of the research findings, and conclusions from the results and finally the recommendations for further studies.

5.2. Summary of Findings

The study attempted to investigate the factors that contribute to effective teaching and learning in the public senior high schools in Bantama sub-Metro in the Kumasi Metropolis. The following research questions were posed to guide the study:

- 1. How do the teachers involvement in decision making influence teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis?
- 2. To what extend does teacher personality influence teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis?
- 3. How does the heads leadership style influence teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis?
- 4. How does the heads instructional supervision influence teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis?

The following findings were arrived at in the present study:

- The research question one sought to find out how the teachers' involvement
 in decision making influence teaching and learning in senior high school in
 Bantama sub- metro in the Kumasi Metropolis revealed that majority of
 teachers strongly agreed that their heads not consulting teachers whenever
 they want to pass final resolution in school meeting is negatively affecting
 teaching and learning
- 2. The research question two sought to find out the extent to which teachers personality influence teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis and it was revealed that majority of teachers strongly agreed that their patient and enduring personality influence teaching and learning
- 3. Moreover, the third research question which sought to find out the extent to which heads' leadership style influence teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub- metro in the Kumasi Metropolis revealed that majority of the teachers strongly agreed that their heads making every member of staff to be relevant in the school system influence teaching and learning
- 4. Finally, the last research question that sought to find out the extent to which heads instructional supervision influence teaching and learning in senior high school in Bantama sub-metro in the Kumasi Metropolis revealed that majority of the teachers strongly agreed that heads maintaining school climate that is conducive for teaching and learning influence teaching and learning.

5.3. Conclusion

Based on the findings of the study, it can be concluded that; teachers' involvement in school decision-making leads to the school improvement programs, school activities and teachers teaching effectiveness and students learning abilities. Teachers desired personality as perceived by their students in their classes not only can lead their students towards leaving shyness but also help them in building a strong interaction with their peers and inspire them into being successful learners. The leadership style of the head masters that enable them to recognize their teachers' influence teaching and learning and headmasters' instructional supervision that breeds good school environment that is conducive for teaching and learning also influence effective teaching and learning.

5.4. Recommendations

From the results of the study, the following recommendations were made:

- Head masters should recognize the importance of involving teachers in the school decision-making process and the positive impact that teacher involvement can have on teaching and learning.
- 2. Government should organize seminars, conferences and workshops frequently to sensitize teachers on the need to always display acceptable behaviour or personality while interacting with their students, in and outside the classroom.
- 3. The school heads should not relent on their oars in sustaining the leadership style in the school system but exhibit leadership style desired by the teachers.

4. Head masters should set time for instructional supervision in schools because it is one of the roles that positively influence teaching and learning.

5.5. Recommendations for Future Research

The areas suggested by the study for further research include:

- Challenges facing head masters on instructional supervision in public senior high schools.
- 2. Strategies to improve teachers' participation in school decision making processes.
- 3. Teacher personality traits and students self confidence in learning.
- 4. Head masters leadership styles and teachers job performance.

REFERENCES

- Aggarwal, R. D. (2003). *Organization and management*. New Delhi, India: McGraw-Hill Publishes.
- Ajala, O. L. (2010). Teacher's quality and personality traits as predictors of students' success in science education. *Journal of Education and Development*, *2*, 24-33.
- Amin, M. E. (2005). Social science research: Conception. methodology and analysis.

 Uganda, Kampala: Makerere University.
- Anderson, K. D. (2004). The nature of teacher leadership in schools as reciprocal influences between teacher leaders and principals. *School Effectiveness and School Improvement*, 15 (1), 97-113.
- Anwana, U. I. (2004). *Psychology: Aspects of human development* (2nd ed.). Enugu: Academic Publishing Company.
- Archibong's, F. I. (2010). Instructional Supervision in the Administration of Secondary School. *Improvement*, 15(1), 97-113.
- Arnold, H. J., & Feldman, D. C. (2006). *Organizational behaviour*. New York: McGraw-Hill.
- Babbie, E., & Mouton, J. (2004). *The practice of social research*. Cape Town: Oxford University Press.
- Barrick, M., & Mount, M. (2001). The big five personality dimensions and job performance: A meta-analysis. *Personnel Psychology*, 44, 1-26.
- Barth, R. S. (2001). Teacher leadership. The Phi Delta Kappan, 82(6), 443-449.
- Beach, D. B., & Reinhartz J. (2000). Supervisory leadership: Focus on Instruction.

 Toronto: Allyn and Bacon.

- Ben. R., & Harris W, (2005). Supervisory behavior in education (2nd ed.). Englewood Cliff, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall.
- Blasé J., & Blasé, J (2004). *Handbook of instructional leadership: How successful principals promote teaching and learning* (2nd ed.). Thousand Oaks, CA: Corwin Press.
- Blasé, J., & Blasé, J. (2000). Effective instructional leadership: Teachers' perspectives on how principals promote teaching and learning in schools. *Journals of Educational Administration*, 38(20), 130-141.
- Blasé, J. (2003). The micro politics of effective school based leadership: Teachers perspectives. *Educational Administration Quarterly*, 29(2), 142-163.
- Bogden, R., C., & Biklen, S. K. (2007). Qualitative research for education. An introduction to theories and methods (5th ed.). Boston: Pearson Education.
- Brewer, D. (2003). Principals and student outcomes: Evidence from U.S. high schools. *Economics of Education Review*, 12, 281-292.
- Brown, M., & Cregan, C. (2008). Organizational change cynicism: The role of employee involvement. *Human Resource Management*, 47, 667-686.
- Bruner, J. (2003). The process of education. Cambridge. MA: Harvard University Press.
- Burns, J. M. (2008). Leadership. New York: Harper & Row.
- Cameron, L. (2001). *Teaching language to young learners*. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Certo, S.C. (2006). Supervision: Concepts and Skill Building (5th ed.). Irwin, United Sates: McGraw-Hill.

- Chamorro-Premuzic, T., & Furnham, A. (2005). *Personality and intellectual competence*.

 Mahwah: Larence Erlbaum Associates.
- Church, A. T. (2007). Personality research in a non-western culture: The Philippines.

 *Psychological Bulletin, 102, 272-292
- Cohen, K., & Latan, C. V. (2005). Learning effectiveness: Impacts of Teachers' Personality and Gender. *Journal of Educational Psychology*. 6, 26-37
- Common, R. (2004). Organizational learning in a Political Environment: Improving Policy-Making in UK Government. *Policy studies*, *25*(1), 34-45.
- Cooper, J., & Bemis, K. (2007). Teacher personality, teacher behavior and their effects upon pupil achievement. *ERIC database*.
- Cooper, J., & Bemis, K. (2011). Impact of teacher personality styles on academic excellence of secondary students. *National Forum of Teacher Education Journal*, 21(3), 12-23.
- Copland, M. A. (2003). Leadership of inquiry: Building and sustaining capacity for school improvement. *Education Evaluation and Policy Analysis*, 25(4), 375-395.
- Creswell, J. W. (2003). Research design: Qualitative, quantitative, and mixed methods approaches. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.
- Creswell, J. W. (2009). Research design: Qualitative, quantitative and mixed methods approaches (3rd ed.). Los Angeles: Sage Publications, Inc.
- Daresh, J. C. (2006). Leading and supervising instruction. New York: Corwin Press.
- Davis, H. (2006). Exploring the contexts of relationship quality between middle school students and teachers. *Elementary School Journal*, 106(3), 193-224.

- Day, C. (2009). Researching teaching through reflective practice. In J. Loughran (Ed.), (1999). Researching teaching: Methodologies and practices for understanding pedagogy. London: Falmer Press.
- De Fruyt, F., & Mervielde, I. (2006). Personality and interests as predictors of educational streaming and achievement." *European Journal of Personality*, 10, 405-425
- De Raad, B., & Schouwenburg, H. C. (2006). Personality in learning and education: a review. *European Journal of Personality*, 10, 303-336
- Dessus, P., & B. Lemaire, B. (2002). *Using production to assess learning: An ILE that fosters Self-Regulated Learning.* in *Proc. ITS 2002 Conf.* Berlin: Springer.
- Dimmock, C. (2003). Leadership in learning-centered schools: cultural context, functions and qualities. In M. Brundrett, N. Burton and R. Smith (Eds.), *Leadership in education* (pp. 3-22). London: Sage.
- Dodge, A. F. (2003). What are the personality traits of the successful teacher? *Journal of Applied Psychology*, 27, 325-337.
- Drake, T. L. (2003). *The principalship* (6th ed.). New Jersey: Prentice-Hall.
- Elmore, R. (2000). *Building a new structure for school leadership*. Washington, DC: The Albert Shanker Institute.
- Etsey, Y. K. A. (2005). Assessing performance in schools: Issues and practice. *Ife**Psychological Studies, 3, 5-10.
- Farley, G. (2010). Instructional supervision: A descriptive study focusing on the observation and evaluation of teachers in cyber schools- Indiana University of Pennsylvania.

- Farrant, J. S. (2004). *Principles and practice of education*. England: Pearson Education Limited.
- Fisher, D. L., & Kent, H. B. (2008) Associations between teacher personality and classroom environment. *Journal of Classroom Interaction* 33(1), 5-13.
- Frankel, J., & Wallen, N. (2003). How to design and evaluate research in education, New York: McGraw-Hill.
- Fred, L. (2005). Organizational behaviour (10th ed.). Irwin: McGraw Hill.
- Fullan, M. (2001). Leading in a culture of change. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass.
- Fullan, M. (2002). The change leader. Educational Leadership, 59(8), 16-20.
- Fullan, M. (2007). Successful school improvement. Buckingham, UK: Open University Press.
- Gagne, R. (2007). Instructional Technology Foundations. Hillsdale, NJ: Lawrence Erlbaum Assoc.
- Ghauri, P., & Gronhaug, K. (2005). Research methods in Business studies. Dorset:

 Prentice Hall.
- Goldsmith, R. (2006). Creative style and personality theory. New York: Routledge.
- Goldstein, J. (2003). Making sense of distributed leadership: The case of peer assistance and review. *Educational Evaluation and Policy Analysis*. 25, 397-421.
- Goleman, D. (2002). The new leaders: Transforming the art of leadership into the science of results. London: Little Brown.
- Gronn, P. (2003). The new work of educational leaders. London: Paul Chapman Press.
- Gupta, C. B. (2009). Management theory and practice: New Delhi: Sultan Chand and Sons.

- Harris, A., & Spillane, J. (2008). Distributed leadership through the looking glass. *Management in Education*, 22, 31-34.
- Harris, A. (2002). Effective leadership in schools facing challenging contexts. *School Leadership & Management*, 22(1), 15-26.
- Harris, A. (2003). Teacher leadership as distributed leadership: Heresy, fantasy or possibility? *School Leadership & Management*, 23(3), 313-324.
- Harris, A. (2004). Distributed leadership and school improvement: Leading or misleading? *Educational Management Administration & Leadership*, 32, 11-24.
- Harris, A., & Lambert, L. (2003). *Building leadership capacity for school improvement*.

 Buckingham: Open University Press.
- Harris, A., & Muijs, D. (2005). *Improving schools through teacher leadership*. New York: Open University Press.
- Hawk, S. (2003). The effects of user involvement: some personality determinants."

 International Journal of Man-Machine Studies, 38, 839-855.
- Hedge, T. (2000). *Teaching and learning in language classroom*. Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- Henson, R. K., & Chambers, S. M. (2003). Personality type as a predictor of teaching efficacy and classroom control in emergency certified teachers. *Education*, 124, 261-268.
- Hill, L. M. (2004). *Graduate students' perspectives on effective teaching. Adult Learning,* 25(2), 57-65.
- Hyman, R. T. (2000). Ways of teaching. New York, NY: J.B. Lippincott Company.

- Ingersoll, R.M. (2006). Teachers' decision-making power and school conflict. *Sociology* of Education, 69(2). 159-176.
- Järlström, M. (2000). Personality preferences and career expectations of Finnish business students. *Career Development International*, *5*(3), 44-154.
- Judge, T. A., & Bono, J. E. (2000). Five-factor model of personality and transformational leadership. *Journal of Applied Psychology*, 85(5), 751-766.
- Knight, J. (2008). Internationalization: A decade of changes and challenges. *International Higher Education*, 50, 6-7
- Kothari, C. R., (2004). Research methodology. Methods and techniques (2nd ed.). Wishwa Prakashan.
- Laidra, K., & Allik, J. (2006). Personality and intelligence as predictors of academi achievement: A cross-sectional study from elementary to secondary school.

 Personality and Individual Difference, 34, 1222-1228.
- Laye, H. (2005). *Understanding the male temperament*: USA: Harvest House Publisher.
- Likert, R. (2007). The human organization: Its management and value. New York: McGraw-Hill.
- Luthans, F. (2005). Organisational behavior (10th ed.). New Yolk: McGraw-Hill.
- Macfarlane, B (2011) Intellectual leadership in Higher Education. London: Routledge.
- Mbua, F. N. (2003). *Educational administration: Theory and practice*. Limbe: Design House.
- McCrae, R. R., & Costa, P. T. (2007). Personality Trait Structure as a Human Universal.

 *American Psychologist, 52, 509-516.

- Middlewood, D., & Abbott, I. (2012). Achieving success with your leadership project.

 London: Sage.
- Miller, J. P. (2008). *The holistic curriculum*. Toronto: The Ontario Institute for Studies in Education (OISE Press).
- Mori, S., & Tanabe, Y. (2012). Effects of perceived teacher personality on student class evaluations. *Kinki University Center for Liberal Arts and Foreign Language Education Journal (Foreign Language Edition)*, 3(1), 163-181.
- Moscoso, S., & Salgado, J. (2004). Dark side personality styles as predictors of task, contextual, and job performance. *International Journal of Selection and Assessment*, 12(4), 356-362.
- Mullins, L. J. (2004). Management and organizational behaviour (7th ed.). New Delhi: Prentice-Hall.
- Murray, H., & Paunonen, S. (2000). Teacher personality traits and student instructional ratings in six types of university courses. *Journal of Educational Psychology*, 82(2), 250-261.
- Nakpodia, E. D. (2006). *Educational administration: A new approach* (2nd ed.), Warri: Jonokase Publishers.
- Northouse, P. (2013). Leadership: Theory and practice (6th ed.) London: Sage
- Northouse, P. G. (2010). *Leadership: Theory and practice* (5th ed.). Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.
- Oduro, G., Dachi, H., Fertig, M., & Rarieya, J. (2007). Examining educational leadership and quality in developing countries. EdQual, 9, 3-6.

- Ogunsola, J. T. (2003). Assessment of teachers' personality and teaching outcomes in Nigerian Schools. Unpublished M.Ed Project, University of Lagos.
- Ohlsson, S. (2006). Some principles of intelligent tutoring. *Instructional Science*, 14, 293-326.
- Okumbe, J. A. (2008). *Educational management theory and practice*, Nairobi: Nairobi, University Press.
- Pajak, E. (2002). Clinical supervision and psychological functions: A new direction For theory and practice. *Journal of Curriculum and Supervision*, 17(3), 189-205.
- Patrick, C. L. (2011). Student evaluations of teaching: Effects of the Big Five personality traits, grades and the validity hypothesis. *Assessment & Evaluation in Higher Education*, 36(2), 239-249.
- Patton, M. Q. (2002). Qualitative research & evaluation methods (3rd ed.). London: Sage Publications.
- Pearce, C., & Conger, J. (2003). Shared leadership: Reframing the how's and whys of leadership. Sage: London
- Polk, J. A. (2006). Traits of effective teachers. *Arts Education Policy Review*, 107, 23-29.
- Pratt, D. D. (2002). Conceptions of teaching. Adult Education Quarterly, 42, 203-220.
- Rebore, R. W. (2001). *Human resource administration in education* (6th ed.). Needham Heights: Allyn & Bacon.
- Reeve, J. (2001). *Understanding motivation and emotion* (3rd ed.). New York, USA: Harcourt College Publishers.

- Robbins, S. (2003). *Organizational behavior* (10th ed.). London, UK: Prentice-Hall International Limited.
- Rosenholtz, S. J. (2005). Effective schools: Interpreting the evidence. *Am. J. Educ.*, 93(3), 352-388.
- Rue, L. W., & Byars, L. L. (2000). Supervision key link to productivity. Irwin, Boston, USA: Richard D.
- Sergiovanni, T. J., & Starratt, R. J. (2002). *Supervision: A redefinition* (7th ed.). New York: McGraw-Hill Companies Inc.
- Sergiovanni, T. J., & Starratt, R. J. (2007). Supervision: A redefinition (8th ed.). New York: McGraw-Hill Companies Inc.
- Sergiovanni, T. J. (2001). *The principalship: A reflective practice perspective* (4th ed.). Toronto, ON: Allyn and Bacon.
- Somech, A. (2005). Directive versus participative leadership: Two complementary approaches to managing school effectiveness. *Educational Leadership Quarterly*, 56(5), 41-53.
- Spillane, J. P. (2003). Educational leadership. *Educational Evaluation and Policy Analysis*, 25, 343-346.
- Spillane, J. P. (2006). Distributed leadership. San Francisco, CA: John Wiley and Sons.
- Stone, R. (2002). Best practices for high school classrooms: What award winning secondary teachers do. Thousand Oaks, CA: Corwin Press.
- Strauss, S. (2005). Teaching as a natural cognitive ability: Implications for classroom practice and teacher education. In *Developmental psychology and social change*, D. Pillemer & S. White, (Eds.). New York: Cambridge University Press.

- Sullivan, P., & Gervasoni, A. (2000). Caution: Classroom under observation. *Asia-Pacific Journal of Teacher Education*, 28, 247-260.
- Sullivan, S., & Glanz, J. (2000). Supervision that improves teaching: Strategies and techniques. Thousand Oaks, CA: Corwin Press Inc.
- Tyagi, R. S. (2010). School-based instructional supervision and the effective professional development of teachers Compare: A journal of comparative and international Education, 40(1), 111-125.
- Wadesango, N. (2011). Strategies of teacher participation in decision making in schools. *Journal of Social Science*, 27(2), 85-91.
- Wenzare Z. (2012). Instructional supervision in public secondary schools in Kenya.

 Educational Management Administration & Leadership, 40(2), 188-216.
- Yin, R. K. (2003). Case study research, design and methods. (3rd ed.). Thousand Oaks: Sage Publications Ltd.
- Zepeda, S. J. (2003). The principal as instructional leader: A handbook for supervisors.

 Larchmont: Eye on Education.
- Zimmerman, B. J. (2000). Self-regulated learning and academic achievement: An overview. *Educational psychologist*, 25(1), 3-17

APPENDIX A

SELF ADMINISTERED QUESTIONNAIRE FOR GRADUATE TEACHERS

Dear Respondent,

I am carrying out a study on the topic "Factors Contributing to Effective Teaching and Learning in Public Senior High Schools in Bantam Sub Metro in Kumasi Metropolis". It is against this background that you have been randomly selected to participate in the research by completing the questionnaire. It would thus be very helpful if you assist by answering the questionnaire as per instructions at the beginning of each section. You are required to provide the most appropriate answer in your opinion. Your responses will be

kept confidential. In any case the questionnaire is anonymous. Thank you.

Yours faithfully,

Dina Donkye Arthur

(Researcher)

SECTION A

RESPONDENTS' BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Please help us classify your response by supplying the following facts about yourself and your opinion on the raised issues by ticking an appropriate box. There is no right wrong or answer therefore no particular response is targeted.

- 1. Age: Less than 30[]. 31-40[].41 50[] 51+[]
- 2. Sex: Male []. Female [].
- 3. Educational Status: First Degree [] M.ed [] Mphil []
- 4. Teaching Experience: 1 5yrs [] 6 10yrs [] 11 15yrs [] 16+yrs []

SECTION B

TEACHERS QUESTIONNAIRE

Instruction: Please rate the following statements on a scale of 1 to 5, where 1 = Strongly Disagree 2= Disagree 3= Not Sure, 4 = Agree and 5 = Strongly Agree.

Statements	Strongly	Disagree	Not	Agree	Strongl
	Disagree		Sure		y Agree
1. My head not considering teachers					
suggestions in decision making for					
running of the school is affecting	CATIO				
teaching and learning	23	SE SE			
		12			
2. My head not considering teachers'	K 3	2			
view in final decision-making of the	OT_A	1			
school is affecting teaching and learning					
3. The head not consulting teachers	The state of the s				
whenever he/she wants to pass final					
resolution in school meeting is affecting					
teaching and learning					
4. The head not allowing teachers to					
demonstrate high degree of					
innovativeness and creativity in decision					
making process of the school is affecting					

teaching and learning			
5. The head not encouraging co-operation			
among the teaching staff during the			
decision-making process of the school is			
affecting teaching and learning			
6. My meticulous and perfectionist			
personality influence teaching and			
learning			
7. My friendly and sociable influence			
teaching and learning	-Ano		
8. My forceful and controlling		do I	
environment influence teaching and	- 1	3	
learning	A 7	工	
9. My patient and enduring personality	(0))	200	
influence teaching and learning	A 1945		
10. My attention-seeking personality		10	
influence teaching and learning			
11.My fair and free of bias personality	19		
influence teaching and learning	E. Berry		
12My supporting and giving sympathy			
to students influence teaching and			
learning			
13. The head master seeing to the			
welfare of the teachers and students			
influence teaching and learning			

14. The head making every members of				
staff to be relevant in the school system				
influence teaching and learning				
15.My head enforcing discipline among				
students and teachers leads to achieving				
better academic goals				
grand armanana grand				
16. The individual needs of the teachers				
and students are considered by the head				
thus better academic performance of the	Car.			
students	100			
55		4		
17. Community involvement in the		19.		
		1 2		
school administration has positive effect on the academic achievement of the	2)	55.		
students	015	//		
THE REAL PROPERTY AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY ADDRESS OF THE PARTY AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY AND ADDRESS OF THE PART	1111			
18. Heads monitoring students discipline				
influencing teaching and learning	-37			
19. Heads talking to teachers as	MACO CO			
colleagues and discusses classroom				
affairs with them influencing teaching				
and learning				
20. Heads maintaining school climate				
that is conducive for teaching and				
learning influencing teaching and				
learning				

21.Heads regularly evaluating teachers'			
instructional methods and makes			
contribution without obviously being			
judgmental influencing teaching and			
learning			

